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I'he Lost Village Of Hopeton

AN OLD CEMETERY, ALMOST COMPLETELY GOVERED BY CHASS
and underbrash, whose 1mnbstones mostly lie toppled and broken,
and a brick Louse, which has been modernized for present day living,
today are the sole remains of the lost village of Hopeton, a thriving
commmmily which flourished over a hundred years ago about 14
miles sonth of Geneva, near Dresden.

Lxcept for these Lwo landmarks, the glory that once was IMope-
ton’s has now been completely oblilerated by the furrows of prosper.
ons Tarmlands. Yet, hut for the whimsies of Fale, Hopeton today
might have heen a thriving community, perhaps the equal of Geneva,
Indeed, lor three decades Hopeton gave every indication of becoming
such an industrial conter — three decades of prosperity before it
began to decline. For perhaps another 20 or 30 years, Hopeton
continued to exisl, bul it was rapidly turning into a ghost town until
finally it disappeared all together.

The exact location of Haopelon lies aboul a half-mile west of
where the Geneva-Watkins highway (Route 14) is iulersected by the
Penn Yan-Dresden road. That is the spot picked in 1799 by Capt.
Charles Williamnson, agent for the Pulieney Estales, on which to
build a new village.

The Pre-Emption Line, which runs north and south just on the
western oulskirts of the village of Dresden, marked the castern
boundary of the Pulteney Eslates, successors to the original Phelps-
Gorham purchase. The water power and the great falls of the Keuka
Outlet to the west were also included in the Jand belonging to the
P'ulteney Lslates.

After he had completed the laying oul of Geneva, Capt. William-
son {raveled south Lo the Dresden area where he planned 1o establish
another village. Plots and maps of the viilage of Hopeton have long
since been lost, but {from information reconstructed from various
deeds, the community was of large proportions and it compared
in size with the nearby villages,

Williamson gave this new seitlement the name of Hopeton in
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honor of the Farl of Hopeton, for whomn his father had worked as
secrefary, However, in the vears that followed, the aren also went
by the name of llope on many of the early New York Stae aps,
evidently an abbreviation of the original name,

The new village was surveyed by Ueney Plumb and the firat
deed of record is dated August 12, 1779, Tor Lot 11, which was sold
to a Gilbert Hathaway, There was a larpge public square and [rom
real estate records it is revealed (he village was quickly seitled and
lots braught bigher prices than many in Geneya,

A carelul survey of theso same records show Lhat the village
square was centered on the Penn Yan Road, o Lalf-mile west of the
Geneva-Watkins highway, and where a cut-olf of the lalter highway
swings into the Penn Yan road,

Capt. Williamson had located the villnge close Lo the Pre-Emption
Line. The 900 acres lying between the line and Sencca Lake, which
mcluded present Dresden, was not in the Pulteney purchase but was
owned by parties residing in the caslern part of the state until 1819,

John Nicholas, who Tounded White Springs Farin near Geneva,
erected several mills in the Keuka oullet goree, Although these were
outside the village {imnits, they were known as the Hopeton Mills,
They were subsequently taken over by Abralam Dox, Geneva mer-
chant, wntil a [ire in 1827 destroyed the buildings, bringing near
financial ruin 10 Dox,

The only remaining memory of this man is in the fact that «
small stream to the west is stll called Dox Creek and the area for
many years was known as Hopeton Mills on the railroad that ran to
Penn Yan along the outler and past the mill ruins,

It was several years prior to the destruction of the miils that
two Geneva mcn,-b(:gilming a nearby Lusiness venture, unknowingly
started the chain of circumstances that was to bring gradual
oblivion to the village of Hopeton.

Herman H. Boguarl, Geneva lawyer, and Sanuel Colt, a Geneva
merchant, bought the land on the lake where Dresden now stands,
This was about 1820, some 21 vears after Hopeton had been estgh.
lished. The two Genevans like the lake location and they envisioned
establishing a prosperous lake shipping port. The Valentine brothers
were hired to lay out this new village on the lake, a village which
at first was called Bogartsville, but which changed its name within
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the next three years to Dresden,

Although Dresden gol ks slarl about 1820, it was still o few
years belore il began to ilirottle, so 1o speak, the nearby village of
[lopeton. Docks were buill along the lake al Dresden to accommodale
the lake stcamers and 1o provide a shipping point for the ucarby
area.

Then in 1833 the Keuka-Sencca Lake Canal was constructed
between Penn Yan and Dresden thus enabling products of Yates
County and points farther south 1o go by boat through the canal to
Ihresden up Seneca Lake and ultimately to the Erie Canal,

Mills, warehouses, boatyards and drydocks sprang up at Dresden,
and with this lake prosperity, there was nothing Lo warranl a separale
village to the west. 8o, TTopeton, which had shown faint signs of
dwindling, slowly and surely figuratively slid downhill into Dresden.
A little cluster of honses still ranained al Hopeton as late as 1865, but
these, too, soon pave way to wild land, which was purchased in its
entively and thrown inte larms.

Hopeton, as a dying communily in 1865, consisted solely of 18
houses, a small hotel and a schoolhouse.

In 1952 1 travelled over the old Hopeton territory 1o sce what
was left of the old village.

The Hopeton cemelery can be found without any wrouble, Time,
wilh probably the aid of a few human hands here and there, has dealt
harshly wilh this burial ground of the [Topeton pionecers. The whole
cemelery, slandiog on a knell vverlooking the gorge, is covered with
a thick growth of grass, underbush, small Irees and vines.

At the lime of my visit, lombstones were lying on the ground,
some of then broken, others covered with dirt, while olher markers
had their identifications completely oblierated. The cemetery had
been used for a few burials up until not so long ago.

Farther west along the Penn Yan road stands a brick house, the
only man-made structure of the old village now in existence. Once
the Liome of D. W, Dox on the western outskirls of Hopeton, it s
now occupied by Walter Nielzen.

Nol a stick nor a stone can he found along the outlet west of
Dresden fo suggest a mill had ever stood on the bank. The surrender
of Hopeton to Father Time, at least along the stream had been
complete,
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About a mile south of the village there are some nearly obliler-
ated ruins which miglt be identified as the foundalion of Y l}ouse
once belonging 1o a C. A. Dunning. A few yards farther away is an
alrandened bridge over the outlel, which had otce served as a
crossover for a road running south from Hopeton, Nearly, too,
was a stone formation which bad all the earmarks of heing the
remuants of a mill of some sort. Bul, all these rnins were nol really
tinpeton proper, for they were too far from the village sile,

That’s the story of Hopeton. -the past and the present. In the real
estate records of Yales Lounty, deeds of recent years cling to the rel-
crence of village lot nuinbers of Hopeton in the trausfer of far‘m
property in that avea. In this way the lost village of ”(‘J]]l’.‘IOI] still
survives as a mounment, the foundation of which was laid by
Williamson, and whose destruction was due in large part 1? thos-:»c
incapable of putting inlo vxecution the extensive plan which his
ability had conceived and laid out.
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